Time in Rutland addenda.

Ayston.

The tenor headstock was found to be riddled with woodworm in 2014 & it was replaced by a cast iron box section one by Taylors in 2015. At the same time the second bell headstock was replaced by a new wooden one. Both were provided with ball bearings.

Barrow

The bell was seen when in Cottesmore church in 1980. It was incised:

CORT & CO FOUNDERS LEICESTER 1831

When scrapped at Taylors in the mid-1980’s (as part of the metal used for the Northampton St Benedict ring) it was 20.5” diameter & weighed 1.3.18. It was clearly cast by Thomas II Mears of Whitechapel, and, presumably Corts, who ordered it, had the inscription incised before delivery.

Barrowden.
The weight of the treble is 3.1.24.

Cottesmore.

Newspaper report:

COTTESMORE, RUTLAND, Jan. 1. ... / .... / 
Ringing “the old year out and the new one in” was practised at Cottesmore on Tuesday night, and was quite a novelty, the bells not having been rang for more than 50 years. They have lately been re-hung, by Mr. Rd. Coverley, of Greetham, in very excellent style.
(Lincoln, Rutland and Stamford Mercury, Fri. 3 Jan. 1845)

Edmondthorpe.

The weight of the second bell has been found amongst the Hedderly Notes in George Hanks Notebook (at Cincinnati Historical Society, Cincinnati, USA). It weighs 4.2.3.

Oakham

The weights of the bells given are the as-cast weights. In Gilletts tuning books the finished weights of the 1910 ring are not recorded, but the amount of tunings is given. Thus a close approximate to the actual weights can be given:

1. 4.3.18

2. 4.3.14

3. 5.2.5

4. 6.2.27

5. 8.2.15

6. 9.2.24

7. 14.1.3

8. 21.3.6

The recast weights of the two tenors in 1924 are:

7. 16.2.19

8. 24.2.9

The  1677 Toby III Norris bell recast by Taylors in 1875 weighed 21.1.0 (Taylors Records).

Thanks to Alan Buswell for looking up the Gillett & Johnston Records.

Preston.
The sanctus bell has been rehung dead by the John Taylor Bellfoundry in 2020.

Ryhall.

The bells have been restored by Hayward Mills Associates of Nottingham. A new fabricated steel bell frame for six bells has been installed lower in the tower and the bells rehung. A new treble bell has been provided:

1(i). * SANCTUS * SANCTUS * SANCTUS * DOMINUS * DEUS * SABBAOTH 

Waist:



20 (T) 03

Lower waist: IN * PIAM * MEMORIAM * BARBARA * CATHERINE * ANDREWS * OB * FEB * MM *




28.375” 5.0.16

The old bells have been weighed:

2. 4.3.6

3. 5.2.22

4. 6.2.26

5. 9.0.18

6. 11.1.18

The bells were rededicated by the Bishop of Peterborough on 27th April 2004.

The historic old frame has been preserved intact in situ.

Visited: GAD 4.2004.

Stretton.
In September 2004 both bells were at Taylors bellfoundry to have the crown staples drilled out prior to rehanging by Nick Meadwell.

At this time they were weighed:

1.
 2.0.17

2. 
 2.2.14

Thanks to Andrew Higson, Taylors Bell Master.

Uppingham.
The weight of the 5th bell is 7.3.18, not as published.

In 1804 Robert Taylor recast the 4th bell, the old bell was 33.25” in diameter & weighed 7.2.17 gross, the new bell being 33.75” in diameter & weighing 7.0.24 as installed.

Information from Taylors Records.

Uppingham School.

A small bell has been found disused in a store.

1.1849








13”

It was cast by C & G Mears at the Whitechapel bell foundry.

The Tercentenary Block clock bell by Taylors, although undated, was cast in 1890, is 21.25” in diameter & weighs 2.0.16.

Information from Taylors Records.
From the Gillett & Johnston Archive:

UPPINGHAM, Chapel and No. 1 as School Bell.

2993;   4;   47 1/8";   20-1-24 in F
2992;   3;   35"  8-1-1 in A

2991;   2;   28 13/16";   5-0-2 in D;   
2990;   1;   25 1/2";   3-2-1 in F;   

Thanks to Alan Buswell

Newspaper reports are taken from Order & Disorder 1840 to 1845, compiled by John Eisel who has kindly consented to their reproduction.
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